
1 
 

Planning Board 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

336 Town Office Road 
Troy, New York 12180 

 
 
 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING BOARD MEETING HELD March 19, 2015, 
 

PRESENT were RUSSELL OSTER, CHAIRMAN, DAVID TARBOX, MICHAEL 

CZORNYJ, and TIMOTHY CASEY.  

ABSENT were KEVIN MAINELLO, FRANK ESSER, and VINCE WETMILLER. 

ALSO PRESENT were DAN BRUNS and MONICA NANN-SMITH, Brunswick Building 

Department, and WAYNE BONESTEEL, P.E., Review Engineer to the Planning Board. 

 Chairman Oster reviewed the agenda for the March 19 meeting as posted on the Town 

website. 

 The draft minutes of the March 5, 2015 meeting were reviewed. Upon motion of Member 

Czornyj, seconded by Member Casey, the minutes of the March 5, 2015 meeting were 

unanimously approved without correction. 

 The first item of business on the agenda was the Oakwood Property Management Planned 

Development District (PDD) Site Plan application. Rob Osterhaudt, of Bohler Engineering, was 

present for the applicant. Mr. Osterhaudt reviewed that he had been before the Planning Board at 

a prior meeting to review a sketch plan for the Oakwood Property Management PDD Site, and that 

since that meeting, he has been able to advance the site plans and provide additional detail to begin 

substantive review of the site plan. Mr. Osterhaudt then reviewed the plan set with the Planning 

Board members. Mr. Osterhaudt reviewed an aerial photograph of current site conditions, and then 

reviewed the proposed site plan layout. Mr. Osterhaudt reviewed the location of the commercial 

office and garage buildings, which are not part of the PDD site and will remain. The balance of 



2 
 

the Oakwood Property Management property is covered by the PDD and is presented as the 

proposed apartment layout on the site plan. Mr. Osterhaudt reviewed the area proposed for 

buildings and amenities as well as the areas on the site to remain undisturbed. Mr. Osterhaudt 

reviewed a layout showing 23 buildings, 11 units per building, for a total of 253 units, substantially 

proposed for the areas of previous disturbance on the site, with only very minor deviation. Mr. 

Osterhaudt reviewed the existing vegetative buffer to the east, adjacent to the North 40 subdivision, 

which will remain, as well as additional buffer along the Oakwood property frontage. Mr. 

Osterhaudt reviewed the access plan, which includes a main access drive located to the south, with 

a secondary access drive located to the north, connecting in an internal road system. Mr. Osterhaudt 

informed the Planning Board members that he had provided a set of the site plans and is 

coordinating with the Brunswick No. 1 and Center Brunswick Fire Departments, the school 

district, the Brunswick Water Department, and the Rensselaer County Planning Department. He is 

anticipating comments back from these agencies, and will incorporate those comments into the 

site plan review. Mr. Osterhaudt also generally reviewed the drainage plan, stating that the site 

generally drains in a westerly direction to Oakwood Avenue, and generally reviewed the on-site 

stormwater management plan, which includes six stormwater management areas for on-site 

treatment. Mr. Osterhaudt confirmed that the stormwater plan will comply with NYSDEC 

regulations, both in terms of water quality and water quantity requirements. Mr. Osterhaudt 

reviewed the proposed public water and public sewer plans. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the plan 

proposes to loop the public water system to the North 40 subdivision, with access points at North 

Star Drive and Naples Court, and that this would also provide redundancy for homeowners in 

North 40.  Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the public sewer will not be connected to the North 40 

subdivision, but rather will be fed in a gravity system to a proposed pump station adjacent to 



3 
 

Oakwood Avenue toward the north portion of the site, to be pumped to the Oakwood 

Avenue/Farrell Road intersection with proposed discharge through the Stoneledge project into the 

county sewer system. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that wetlands on the site will not be impacted, and that 

with respect to one internal wetland crossing, the project has already obtained an Army Corps 

permit for upgrade to a culvert. Mr. Osterhaudt generally stated that the grades and existing 

vegetation on the eastern portion of the property adjacent to North 40 will be maintained to provide 

a vegetative barrier. Chairman Oster inquired about the proposed water line connection to North 

40 along the southern portion of the property. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the proposal is to install 

a water line along the southern area of the property to connect to an existing water line in North 

40, and also to create a service road for the water line, that the service road would be gated at both 

ends, and that the service road would allow access by the Town for water line maintenance and 

also possibly emergency access. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the location of the water line and 

service road were identified based primarily on existing grades. The service road is proposed to be 

a 12 foot wide gravel road. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that he would be reviewing the specifications of 

the service road, and also Town requirements for the water line, as the site plan review proceeded. 

A member of the public commented about the grades in the area of this proposed water line and 

service road. Chairman Oster noted that this meeting did not constitute a public hearing, but that a 

public hearing would be held at a later date on this site plan application. Member Czornyj stated 

that in his opinion, the grades for this water line and service road in the southern portion of the site 

were not realistic for emergency use. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the Fire Department was currently 

reviewing the site plans, and that he would be working through details with both the Fire 

Department and the Planning Board. Member Czornyj asked whether a traffic light was being 

proposed for the main entrance drive to this project. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that during the PDD 



4 
 

review before the Town Board, a traffic assessment was completed and it was determined that a 

traffic signal was not warranted at this location. Chairman Oster asked about the areas of the site 

that have been previously disturbed but are now outside the proposed building areas, and whether 

the applicant would be proposing any additional plantings for these locations. Mr. Osterhaudt 

stated that the building areas were predominantly in areas of previous disturbance, and in those 

limited areas where the site had been previously disturbed but are not within the current building 

area, the applicant would be looking to seed those areas, but that there is existing dense treed and 

brush vegetation surrounding the building site and located between the building site and the North 

40 subdivision. Chairman Oster asked about proposed building height for the apartment buildings. 

Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the buildings are generally two-story, but with the grade changes on the 

site the height would be approximately 30 to 32 feet depending on specific locations. Member 

Casey asked about plans for ownership of the utilities. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the builder would 

be constructing the water lines, and then offering the water lines to the Town, so that the Town 

had control over the water system and the hydrants. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that all internal sewer 

lines on the project site would be continued to be owned by the site owner, but that the pump 

station and sewer line to be constructed along Oakwood Avenue would be offered for dedication 

to the Town. Member Czornyj inquired about the proximity of this project to an existing 

subdivision near Humiston Avenue. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the project was bounded on St. 

Peter’s Cemetery, and was not adjacent to the Humiston Avenue homes. Member Tarbox asked 

whether the water line to be constructed in the southern portion of the site and connected to the 

North 40 water system needed to go across private property. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the current 

property owner did hold an easement for utility connections, but that they were looking at a sliver 

of property between the easement area and the public road right-of-way that may currently be in 



5 
 

private ownership, and are working out the details on that issue. Chairman Oster stated that the 

Planning Board members should have access to the site for site visits as the site plan review 

continues. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that he would review that with his client. Member Czornyj asked 

whether any field markers have been placed to locate road, utility, and building proposed sites on 

the property. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that such markers had not been installed in the field, but he 

would review that with his client. Chairman Oster asked whether there were any architectural 

renderings of the apartment buildings in the site plan set. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the site plan 

set did not include architectural renderings, but that Peter Amato was present with him at this 

meeting, and that Mr. Amato’s company would be building this proposed project, and that the 

buildings would resemble the apartments currently being constructed at the Duncan Meadows 

PDD which are likewise being constructed by Mr. Amato’s company. Member Casey asked 

whether this project was proposed to be built in phases. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the project did 

not have a specific phasing plan, but would be built out based on market conditions. Member 

Czornyj asked whether there would be sidewalks in this project. Mrs. Osterhaudt stated there was 

a proposed internal sidewalk system to connect the buildings. Member Casey asked whether the 

traffic assessment performed for this project provided for any turning lane on Oakwood Avenue, 

even though a traffic light is not warranted. Mr. Osterhaudt stated that the traffic assessment did 

not warrant any off-site improvements, and that a turning lane is not warranted. The Planning 

Board members generally discussed the access from the project site to Oakwood Avenue. The 

Planning Board also generally discussed the option of holding a public hearing under the Town’s 

site plan regulations. The Planning Board generally concurred that a public hearing will be noticed 

and held on this site plan. The Board members also received a comment concerning stormwater 

impacts to off-site properties and indicated that it would accept any written comments that any 



6 
 

members of the public had on that issue. Attorney Gilchrist stated that he would circulate the 

conditions attached to the PDD approval imposed by the Town Board for use by the Planning 

Board during site plan review. This matter is tentatively placed on the April 2 agenda, subject to 

rescheduling to the April 16 meeting based upon receipt of comments from other public agencies 

and possible amendments to the site plan based on those comments. 

 The second item of business on the agenda was the minor subdivision application submitted 

by ADD Leasing for property located at 795 Hoosick Road. Ray Darling, of Erdman Anthony, 

presented an updated minor subdivision plat for the Board to review. Mr. Darling stated that he 

had incorporated changes to the minor subdivision plat based upon the Planning Board’s previous 

comments, and that the current plat shows Lot #1, which is the prior Action Chevrolet/Carbone 

Subaru dealership site, being approximately two acres in size, and Lot #2, which is the lot on which 

the existing wireless communication tower is located, now being approximately 0.65 acres, 

including a twenty-foot wide strip leading to Hoosick Road to provide necessary legal frontage, 

and that the access strip has been kept at a uniform width to provide for adequate turning radius 

for vehicles to the cellular tower lot. Mr. Darling also stated that the setbacks for the existing 

buildings on Lot #1 have been provided, and that all buildings are compliant with Town’s setback 

requirements. Mr. Darling also stated that the owner was working on language for  an easement in 

favor of Lot #1 to be able to use the access strip on Lot #2 for storage or display, but not for 

construction of any buildings in the event a future driveway does need to be constructed for the 

benefit of Lot #2. Chairman Oster stated that the applicant had responded to the Planning Board’s 

prior comments, and made appropriate changes to the subdivision plat. Member Czornyj asked 

about the relocation of the fence near the wireless communications tower. Mr. Darling stated that 

the owner knows the fence must be relocated, and is planning to do so once the winter weather 



7 
 

breaks. Chairman Oster asked whether the Planning Board felt the minor subdivision plat was now 

adequate for public hearing. The Planning Board members generally concurred the plat was ready 

for public hearing. Chairman Oster noted that at the prior meeting, it was stated that once the minor 

subdivision plat was complete, the Planning Board must schedule and hold a public hearing on 

this application. The Planning Board will hold a public hearing on this application at its April 2 

meeting, commencing at 7 p.m.  

 Two items of new business were discussed.  

 The first item of new business discussed was a site plan application submitted by 

Skyworks, LLC for property located at 795 Hoosick Road. This parcel is the parcel identified as 

Lot #1 on the ADD Minor Subdivision application discussed at this meeting. The applicant is in 

the business of leasing, selling, and otherwise maintaining tools and equipment, and explained that 

there are no proposed changes to the buildings, any structural additions, or any changes to parking, 

or any other changes to this site. The Planning Board members generally inquired about the types 

of equipment to be stored and displayed. The applicant stated that the equipment includes fork 

lifts, towers, and general construction equipment for rental or sale. The Planning Board members 

generally discussed the location for outside storage and display, and informed the applicant that it 

will need to identify areas of storage and display on the site plan. The Planning Board members 

directed the applicant to work with the Building Department on the submission of a site plan in 

compliance with the Town’s site plan regulations. This matter is placed on the April 2 agenda for 

further discussion. 

 The second item of new business discussed was a discussion concerning additional 

equipment installation at the garden center located at the existing ACE Hardware Store on Hoosick 

Road. Tom Dingley was present for ACE Hardware. Mr. Dingley handed up a schematic of the 



8 
 

garden center area of the ACE Hardware Store, and reviewed with the Planning Board members 

the current proposal to locate a gazebo and shelving units for display. Mr. Dingley also noted that 

a greenhouse location was on the schematic, but that it was indicated to be a site of a future 

greenhouse, since the owner was still in the process of determining the size of the greenhouse, 

which in turn will dictate whether a permanent foundation will be required or whether the 

greenhouse would simply be temporary and portable in nature. Mr. Dingley stated that he did not 

want Town approval of the gazebo and shelving units to be held up while the greenhouse 

particulars were being determined, and requested that the Planning Board consider only the gazebo 

and shelving at this time. Chairman Oster noted that there was no change in the site itself, that the 

use is consistent with the approved garden center, and that the gazebo and shelving equipment 

would be located entirely within the fence locating the garden center. Chairman Oster asked 

whether the shelving or gazebo would be permanently affixed to the ground. Mr. Dingley stated 

that neither the gazebo nor the shelving would be permanent. Mr. Dingley did state that a potting 

station and register area will remain in place permanently. The Planning Board asked whether the 

owner of ACE Hardware was proposing to sell gazebos, and whether there would be any storage 

of gazebos or kits on the site. Mr. Dingley stated that the gazebo was for display of flowers and 

vegetation only, and that if gazebo sales did occur, they would only be online and the gazebo 

would be for display only. Mr. Dingley confirmed that there would only be this one single gazebo 

on the site for display purposes only. The Planning Board members generally discussed the future 

proposed greenhouse. The Planning Board determined that if the greenhouse was of a size 

requiring a permanent foundation, an amendment to the site plan should be sought since this will 

be adding a permanent structure to the site; however, if the greenhouse was smaller in size and not 

requiring a permanent foundation but rather was portable or movable, then the matter would not 



9 
 

require a site plan amendment but would require coordination and permit issuance by the 

Brunswick Building Department. The Planning Board members generally concurred that since the 

gazebo and shelving were not permanent but rather temporary or movable equipment, an 

amendment to the site plan for these items was not required, but that the owner of ACE Hardware 

must coordinate with the Brunswick Building Department on necessary permits.  

The index for the March 19, 2015 meeting is as follows: 

 1.  Oakwood Property Management PDD Site Plan – April 2, 2015 (tentative). 

2. ADD Leasing – Minor Subdivision – April 2, 2015 (Public hearing to 

commence at 7 p.m.). 

 3. Skyworks LLC – Site Plan – April 2, 2015. 

4. ACE Hardware – Equipment Installation in Garden Center – Coordination 

with Brunswick Building Department Required. 

The proposed agenda for the April 2, 2015 meeting currently is as follows: 

1. ADD Leasing - Minor Subdivision (Public hearing to commence at 7 p.m.); 

2. Oakwood Property Management PDD Site Plan (tentative); and 

3. Skyworks LLC – Site Plan. 


